
MINUTES 

RANDOLPH COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

October 2, 2001 

  

  

There was a meeting held at 6:30 p.m., on Tuesday, October 2, 2001, of the Randolph County Planning 

Board in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Randolph County Office Building, 725 McDowell Road, 

Asheboro, North Carolina. 

  

1. Chairman Maxton McDowell called to Order the Randolph County Planning Board Meeting at 6:30 p.m. 

  

2. Hal Johnson, Planning Director, called roll of the Members: Maxton McDowell, Chairman, present; Bill 

Dorsett, Vice Chairman, present; Lynden Craven, present; Al Morton, present; Phil Ridge, present; 

Larry Brown, present; Chris McLeod, present; and Mark Brower, Alternate, absent. 

  

3. Brown made the motion, seconded by Craven, to approve the Minutes of the September 11, 2001,   

            Randolph County Planning Board Meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  

4. SWEARING IN OF THE WITNESSES: 

  

“Do you swear or affirm that the information you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and 

nothing but the truth, so help you God?” 

  

5 citizens took this Oath. 

  

5. SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST: 

  

A. CAROLYN COX, Sophia, North Carolina, is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow a 

Planned Unit Development to allow a  2nd  residence on a lot located within a minor subdivision 

to be located on Lake Park Road, 4.34 acres, Lake Reese Watershed, Tabernacle Township, 

Zoning District RA, Parcel ID #7712056145.  Property Owner: Clara Swaney. 

  

Carolyn Cox, Giant Oaks Drive, spoke for her mother Clara Swaney.  Cox said they wanted to 

sell the property to someone that would like to move their daughter a residence at this location.  

Cox said the property has been approved for a second residence.  Cox said that the 2 residences 

would be double-wide mobile homes. 

  

Ron Stark said he plans to purchase the property and would like to have 2 double-wide mobiles 

homes or modular homes and they would be 1200 - 1400 sq. ft. each. 

  

There was no one present in opposition to this request. 



  

Craven made the motion, seconded by Dorsett, to approve this request for a Special Use 

Permit.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  

B. NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS, Huntersville, North Carolina, is requesting a Special Use 

Permit to allow a 195 ft. wireless communication monopole tower and service facility to be 

located on James Beeson Road, 118.60 acres, Polecat Creek Watershed, Providence Township, 

Zoning District RA, Parcel ID #7776835979.  Property Owner: James Beeson, Sr. 

  

Bill Howard, American Tower Zoning Manager, was present and presented the Board with a 

written presentation of the request.  Howard explained they are asking for a 195' monopole 

tower.  Howard said this would be an addition to their communications system in Northwest 

Randolph County.  Howard said this pole could accommodate 3 additional carriers.  Howard said 

Nextel Communications is a nationwide wireless provider of two-way radios.  Howard presented 

a map of Randolph County which has the 14 sites that provide the County with Nextel 

Communications.  Howard presented a map of the cover that this tower would provide and 

explained that this site would bridge a 14 mile gap in their coverage without the need to have 

other tower locations.  Howard said this site would be 850' from the nearest thoroughfare and 

explained that they exceed most if not all the requirements of the County (setbacks, buffers, etc.).  

Howard asked the application they have completed to be included into the record of this meeting.  

Howard added that this facility will not be lite and provided the Board with a letter from FCC 

that said this would not be required and would not posse an hazard at this height.  Howard said 

they feel they meet each of the 4 tests required to obtain a Special Use Permit.  Howard spoke of 

the extensive work they have done with the County Planning Staff in locating this site for this 

tower.  Howard presented an example of a monopole for the Board and citizens present and 

explained that this type of tower would have the least amount of visual impact on the 

community.  Howard also explained that this type of tower would hold no negative health impact 

or any TV (or radio) reception interference on the community.  Howard explained that they 

rejected 3 sites on New Salem Road because of the restrictions within the Communications 

Tower Ordinance.  Howard explained that those sites would have worked for Nextel but due to 

residential development on New Salem Road the County Ordinance prevented those sites. 

  

Brown complimented Nextel for their site being located so far back of the road and in a low 

density area of the County. 

  

Christina Garrison, 1884 Hawksview Road, said they felt they had been left in the dark about 

this request.  Garrison said that this is not a heavily vegetated area and there are several housing 

developments in the area.  Garrison talked about the children and the elderly in the community 

and questioned what this would do to their health.  Garrison presented a petition of 80 signatures 

in opposition to this request. (Garrison failed to provided the Board with this petition).  Garrison 

said that the only people that received a letter of notification were those that touch the Beeson 



property and not the entire community.  Garrison said that they don’t have any problems using 

their cell phones in this area now. 

  

Jane Turpin, 1422 Hawksview Road, said that they didn’t won’t to cause problems for the 

Beesons but she has heard reports that towers can harm the health of some people.  Turpin said 

that this tower is fairly close to many houses in the neighborhood.  Turpin asked if there was 

possibly another location in this area that would be farther away from residences and would be 

surrounded by more trees.  Turpin said if this was granted she would like to know exactly where 

the tower would be located.  Howard explained from the site plan where the tower would be 

located for Turpin.  Howard also showed her a picture of a monopole tower. 

  

Bonnie Snider, Harvestview Drive, said that they needed more than a week of time to prepare 

for this type of hearing.  Snider said that her main concern is safety hazards.  Snider said that we 

are already hearing that cell phones are dangerous by  scientist in the news.  Snider expressed 

concerns of a tornado or high winds.  Snider said that they also get fine cell phone reception.  

Snider said this would be an eyesore and a blemish on the landscape.   

  

Howard showed the Board a small section of the anchors used to anchor this type of pole.  

Howard said that these anchor bolts reach down 18-20' into the ground.  Howard explained how 

they are bolted into concrete at this depth. 

  

There are 5 citizens present in opposition to this request. 

  

Dorsett said that he felt this was one of the better locations that the County has approved. 

  

Brown made the motion, seconded by Craven, to approve this request.  The motion passed 

unanimously.  

  

6. REQUESTS FOR PROPERTY REZONING: 

  

A. KEN MCDOWELL, Ramseur, North Carolina, is requesting that 31.90 acres located on Tall 

Pine Street, Cedar Grove Township, be rezoned from Residential Agricultural to Residential 

Mixed/Conditional Use.  Parcel ID # 7659805256 and 7658991588.  The proposed Conditional 

Use Zoning would specifically allow the development of a 26 lot subdivision for single wide 

mobile homes, doublewide mobile homes, modular homes and/or site built homes.  Property 

Owner: David Newton. 

  

McDowell was present and explained their intentions to expand Ulah Forest Subdivision (a 

subdivision they developed a few years ago).  McDowell said that they have had preliminary soil 

evaluations.  McDowell said that the same restrictions would be put on these lots. 

  



Craig Leonard, 352 Tall Pine Street, said he didn’t think they need this added traffic on this 

road.  Leonard said that every week there is a wreck on this road.  Leonard said that when 

McDowell developed this place they did good on the road but they put too many mobile homes 

on this single access road (there is no other entrance in or out of Ulah Forest).  Leonard said he 

thought he need to have another access over on Crestview Drive.   

  

David Matis, Hilliard Court, asked if the County was going to take any of his property.  

Johnson answered no.  Matis said this is all he wanted to know. 

  

Robert Martin, 222 Tall Pine Street, said that there is too much traffic on this road and they’ve 

had numerous wrecks.  Martin said he wouldn’t object if there was another access into the 

development.  Martin said this road is unsafe. 

  

John Standard, Jr., Tall Pine Street, said that there are 90+ homes on this road now with no 

outlet and the road just won’t handle more traffic.  Standard talked about the dangerous curves 

that many cars have run off the road into their yards.  Standard said they weren’t opposed to 

more lots down here but they are opposed to additional traffic without another outlet to this 

community.  Standard expressed concern of fire hazards with no hydrants in the area. 

  

Jose Romero, Tall Pine Street, (had an interpreter) said that the sign that was posted would be 5 

to 10 feet from his house and if the road was placed there it would cause a danger to his home 

during bad weather conditions if a vehicle slide off the road.  Romero asked if any of his land 

would be purchased if this was approved.  Johnson answered no. 

  

Larry Hinsley, 461 Tall Pine Street, said that they have problems even getting out of their 

driveway now and this would add to a very congested traffic problem. 

  

Joe Loflin, 252 Tall Pine Street, talked about the 90 degree curves in this road and said that he 

didn’t have any opposition to this development but he felt there needed to be another access to 

this development.  Loflin said that he hoped McDowell could get his permits but not without 

another access. 

  

There were 20 citizens present in opposition to this request. 

  

Dorsett said that he drove out there this morning but there wasn’t a lot of traffic on the road but 

there are too many homes located on a single dead end road.  Dorsett complimented McDowell 

on the road that is existing. 

  

Chairman McDowell asked McDowell if there a way to get another access and McDowell said 

there is no other access to this property from any other road. 

  



Morton said he felt the development would be okay to be on this property if another access 

could be found. 

  

Dorsett made the motion to deny this request due to the number of access to this single dead end 

road and the density.  Craven seconded this motion.  The motion passed with a 6 to 1 vote - 

Morton voted against the motion. 

  

B. THOMAS CROSS, Franklinville, North Carolina, is requesting that 2.78 acres located on 

Whites Memorial Road, Belle Cross Subdivision, Lot # 1, Franklinville Township, be rezoned 

from Residential Restricted to Residential Agricultural/Conditional Use.  Parcel ID # 

7784743270.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning would specifically allow the placement of a 

single wide mobile home.   

  

Cross was not present for this hearing and there was no one present in opposition. 

  

This request will be postponed. 

  

C. CARL LAMBETH, Trinity, North Carolina, is requesting that 10.04 acres located on Fuller 

Mill Road, Tabernacle Township, Lake Reese Watershed, be rezoned from Residential 

Agricultural to Residential Exclusive/Conditional Use.  Parcel ID # 6794557315.  The proposed 

Conditional Use Zoning would specifically allow the development of a 4 lot subdivision for site 

built homes only. 

  

Jerry King, Surveyor, was present and explained to the Board that Lambeth’s intentions are to 

develop a small subdivision of himself, his children, and his pastor.  King explained that these 

lots are supplied by Davidson Water Inc. and is completely wooded.  King said that they have 

done preliminary soil evaluations and the house size minimum would be 1600 sq. ft.  King 

presented a preliminary set of restrictions for this property. 

  

Chairman McDowell said that these 10 acre tracts were developed originally and he would be 

completely opposed to the development if it was not strictly for family purposes.  McDowell said 

that these large tracts were created to protect the people in this community (who he said he knew 

well) and the tracts were very expensive.  Brown asked McDowell if the original lots were 

restricted with covenants and McDowell answered no. 

  

There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  

Lambeth said that this would be for his children and his pastor and himself. 
  

Craven made the motion, seconded by Morton, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 

request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  



D. ARMOND CORPORATION, Seagrove, North Carolina, is requesting that 115.05 acres located 

on Sawyersville Road, Cedar Grove Township, be rezoned to amend the current Residential 

Exclusive/Conditional Use Zoning.  Parcel ID #’s 7721641089 and 7721624911.  The proposed 

zoning amendment would allow the following changes: decrease the number of lots 66 lots to 43 

lots, increase the number of accesses along Sawyersville Road from 4 private driveways to 8 and 

decrease the road entrances from 2 down to 1. 

  

Johnson explained that the number of connections to Sawyersville Road was a major issue at the 

Commissioners Hearing when this development was originally approved. 

  

King explained that there are some problems with the perking and there will probably be some 

off-site septic systems in this development.  King said that the reason for changing to one street 

is because of the topography of the area and the large creek in the rear section of the property.  

King said that the road would be 2100' verses 6000' as originally proposed.  King said that the 

deed restrictions would be the same as proposed originally. 

  

Johnson asked King about off-site septic sites.  King explained that they would be on the rear 

lots in the subdivision.  Craven asked how many lots would have off-site systems.  King said 

that there may be 14 lots that would be questionable.  Craven asked who would be responsible 

for these systems and King answered they would be deed as an easement.  Johnson said that the 

Board normally assumes that when a lot is approved the septic tank would be contained on the 

individual lots.  Johnson said that there are times when you need off-site septic easements but he 

would have a problem with several off-site easements in a major subdivision.  Johnson said that 

sometime down the road these systems will cause problems.  Dorsett said he agreed with 

Johnson and he felt these would be problems down the road if they began to fail.  Craven agreed 

and said if there are easements across a piece of property where that land owner plants a tree and 

it makes the system fail who is responsible for the repair (the tree owner or the system owner).  

Craven said he felt each lot should stand on its own merit. 

  

Ken Hill asked what would be the difference if the City Sewer malfunctions and if this type of 

easement malfunctioned. 

  

Louise Southern, 993 Sawyersville Road, said that he would like the County to require the two 

lots being proposed on the new road to access the new road and not Sawyersville Road. 

  

Frank Rose, 3564 Sam Jackson Road, said that he would not be opposed to this development 

but he would like to see as few accesses to Sawyersville Road as possible. 

  

Morton made the motion that this request be recommend to the Commissioners that this request 

be approved with the following conditions: 

  



**two lots fronting on both roads must access the new road 

**all lots with off-site septic systems should be platted and deeded and approved by the Health 

Department 

  

Ridge seconded this motion.  The motion failed with a voted of 3 to 4 - Craven, Dorsett, 

Brown, and McDowell voted against the motion.  The recommendation will be to deny this 

request by a vote of 4 to 3. 

  

E. BILLY WHITAKER, Climax, North Carolina, is requesting that 4.50 acres (out of 12.98 acres) 

located at 6763 NC Hwy 22 North, Providence Township, Polecat Creek Watershed, be rezoned 

from Residential Agricultural to Highway Commercial/Conditional Use.  Parcel ID # 

7796065164.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning would specifically allow a used car sales 

with maximum display of 12 cars & sales and sales of 4 pieces of heavy equipment in front of 

NC Hwy 22; repair and sales of heavy equipment in existing 48 x 120 building; storage of heavy 

equipment in 190 x 255 area (behind existing bldg.). 

  

Whitaker was present and explained his intentions to buy/sell cars and heavy equipment.  

Whitaker said there would not be a noticeable change in appearance to the property. 

  

There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  

McLeod made the motion, seconded by Craven, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 

request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  

7. The meeting adjourned at 8:52 p.m.  There were 50 citizens present for this meeting. 

  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

NORTH CAROLINA 

RANDOLPH COUNTY 
 


